
224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

 

������ � � � �� � 	 �
 � � � �� � � � � �� 
 � � �� �� � �	 � �� � � � � � �� � � � ������� � � � �� � 	 �
 � � � �� � � � � �� 
 � � �� �� � �	 � �� � � � � � �� � � � ������� � � � �� � 	 �
 � � � �� � � � � �� 
 � � �� �� � �	 � �� � � � � � �� � � � ������� � � � �� � 	 �
 � � � �� � � � � �� 
 � � �� �� � �	 � �� � � � � � �� � � � � ����
 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
March 14, 2007 

 
 

A meeting of the Sheridan Area Water Supply - Joint Powers Board (SAWS-JPB) was 
called to order at the Sheridan County Commissioners’  Board Room at the Sheridan 
County Courthouse at 5:06 pm. Chairman David Kinskey presided. A quorum of board 
members was present including: Vice Chairman Stephen Maier, Commissioner Robert 
Rolston, and Councilor Robert Webster. Cram and Ketcham were absent. Others present 
were: SAWS Administrator Jay Stender, Mike Cole (City of Sheridan), Dayton Alsaker 
(HKM), members of the media and the public. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

A. Chairman David Kinskey called the meeting to order at 5:06 pm.   
B. The meeting was recorded for transcription purposes.   

 
II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion made to approve the meeting agenda as presented.  
Motion made by: Robert Rolston 
Motion seconded by:  Stephen Maier  
Vote for  approval: 4-0, motion carr ies 
 
Discussion: None. 
 
III. REVIEW AND APPROVE MEETING MINUTES  
 
Motion made to approve the February 14, 2007 meeting minutes as wr itten.  
Motion made by: Stephen Maier  
Motion seconded by: Bob Webster  
Vote for  approval: 4-0, motion carr ies 
 
Discussion: None. 
 
IV. TREASURER’S REPORT 
 
Motion made to accept treasurer ’s report as presented. 
Motion made by: Stephen Maier  
Motion seconded by: Robert Rolston 
Vote for  approval: 4-0, motion carr ies 
 

 



4/12/2007 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

2 

Discussion: Jay Stender highlighted the main payments made this month, specifically, 
SRF payment #11 and SRF payment #12 for the 20”  line and Limbus Consultants for the 
annual report to the Corp of Engineers. This report is for the monitoring and reporting of 
mitigation wetlands at Twin Lake Reservoir.  Jay requested board for permission to close 
out the Sheridan State Bank accounts as all of our checking accounts are now at First 
Federal Savings Bank. The board agreed that the Sheridan State Bank accounts should be 
closed and no motion was necessary. The other financial matter that Jay brought to the 
board is the signature cards for IPAS and the transfer of funds from IPAS to the Capital 
Construction account to pay some bills.  
 
Stephen Maier asked if a cash audit of the City charges had ever occurred. If not, have we 
audited or can we audit? Stender indicated that neither a cash audit or operations cost 
audit have been conducted.  Board instructed Stender to author and send out an RFP to 
hire an accountant (firm) to prepare a bid for consideration. Dr. Maier also asked if it 
would be appropriate to hire an accountant to perform an agreed upon procedure to 
review the City of Sheridan’s quarterly prorate (operations audit) to SAWS and the City’s 
cash collections. Chairman Kinskey said that it would be appropriate as long as it is 
affordable. Stender said that he would send out a two part RFP to accountants in the area 
to perform the two tasks with the intention to have the proposal available for the April 
meeting. 
  
Motion made to approve the transfer  of funds from IPAS account 5073-906 to 
Capital Checking at First Federal. 
Motion made by: Robert Rolston 
Motion seconded by: Bob Webster  
Vote for  approval: 4-0, motion carr ies 
 
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 
  N/A 
 
VI. OLD BUSINESS 
 
 Administrator’s Report  
 
#1 Financial: Jay informed the board that after discussions with Mr. Badly and Mr. Cole 
the best way to receive payment for the City’s SRF contribution is to submit an invoice. 
In the board packet is a copy of the invoice SAWS will be submitting for payment from 
the City of Sheridan. He also told the board that there are a couple of checks written to 
Wendtland & Wendtland because he is splitting his invoices between capital work and 
operational work. While on the topic of the SAWS attorney, Stender sought board 
approval to talk and meet with Tony Wendtland on 20”  water line issues and CWSA 
issues. Commissioner Rolston said that he thinks Jay just needs to be reaffirmed that he 
does have their authorization.   Board agreed that consultation with Wendtland on the 
topics is appropriate. 
 



4/12/2007 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

3 

#2 Twin Lakes: Jay told the board that he has received the wetland report for Twin Lakes 
from Limbus Consultants and has submitted copied of it to the Corp of Engineers and the 
City of Sheridan. 
 
#3 Contingent Water Service Agreements: Jay gave the board and early warning and 
background information about upcoming CWSA’s. SAWS will be creating a CWSA for 
the new Woodland Park School per Patrick Henderson of Whitney Benefits, and a new 
subdivision called Blue Grass Meadows.  No water service agreements are on the docket 
for this meeting. 
 
#4 HKM Construction Update: Jay informed the board that Dayton Alsaker is at the 
meeting to give updates on construction and report on the WWDC Level I study. 
 
#5 Other: Jay mentioned to the board that the contingent water service agreement for 
Sandstone LLC needs to be signed after the conclusion of the meeting. 
  
Discussion: Councilman Bob Webster asked Jay on clarification of the acronyms in his 
report. Jay told him that COS is the City of Sheridan and COE is the Corp of Engineers. 
Mr. Webster asked specifically what is being monitored. Jay told him that specifically 
they are monitoring 1) hydrology – connectivity to water 2) soil 3) biology – affect on 
flora and fauna in the Twin Lakes wetland area. Mr. Stender then invited the board to the 
SAWS office to read any of the documents or reports on the wetland monitoring. 
 
 WWDC Level I Study 
 
Dayton Alsaker of HKM addressed the board and provided the board a summary sheet of 
the activities. The study got underway last summer and it will develop and compare 
alternatives on a preliminary level for various supply or development issues in the 
Sheridan/Buffalo area. A Level I study is a planning study funded by the WWDC and at 
its conclusion will include recommendations for action or for a Level II Study. Recently, 
coordination with the on-going local planning efforts, meetings with the City water 
distribution operation and water plant staff, development of estimates of population and 
population predictions, development of summaries of historical water usage, discussion 
on the availability of additional storage and water rights issues, and evaluations and 
assessments of bringing water from the Gillespie Draw and Lake DeSmet have occurred. 
In the future, HKM will continue its analysis of the Sheridan water system and estimates 
of future water needs. Specifically, in the early summer HKM will be making a public 
presentation on the project to receive input on preliminary findings and 
recommendations.  
 
Discussion: Bob Webster asked the board and Dayton Alsaker about the significance of 
the water service boundary. Mr. Alsaker told Mr. Webster that the water service 
boundary is where SAWS may provide potable water. It is designated by water rights, so 
the State, County and the City would be involved in the discussion to move the boundary. 
Other difficulties include all the other service boundaries, such as the sewer boundary. 
Chairman Kinskey asked if other sources have been considered such as the Tongue River 
or wells. Mr. Alsaker told him that the Tongue River alternative was discussed and 
heavily researched in the 1980’s. It was not deemed as a good alternative and there has 



4/12/2007 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

4 

not been any new research since only a refreshment of the studies. As for wells, they 
were also researched in the 1980’s. The Madison Aquifer formation is not available here 
in Sheridan, so wells and groundwater are not an option. Mayor Kinskey asked Mr. 
Alsaker if he could summarize the 1980’s research in another one sheet for the board so 
they can easily answer the public’s questions on ground water. Dr. Maier said that would 
be a great idea. 
 
  

20”  Construction Update 
 
Dayton Alsaker, of HKM, told the board that the construction on the 20”  water line 
continues its slow progress. The laying of the pipe was halted for 10 days due to a 
delivery issue and that he has asked the construction company to provide him with a 
comprehensive schedule. Dr. Maier thanked Mr. Alsaker for the report and the weekly 
Monday meeting. Mr. Rolston agreed and said they are very helpful and make the board 
more comfortable with the public’s questions.  
 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 
  
 Rate Adjustments for SAWS-JPB System 
 
Discussion: Jay Stender started the conversation by stating the items he wished to be 
discussed.  

1. Desire to change rates 
2. How to change the rates 
3. The formal resolution 

a. Notification of all users, including the 45 days for public comment 
b. Public hearing 
c. After hearing board can go forward or start over 

 
The main reasons for raising rates are to cover debt, increasing operations expenses, and 
the SAWS depreciation burden. Jay went over the documents, prepared for board 
members,  in the board packet related to the rate changes. He summarized the Wyoming 
State Statutes related to changing water rates and then the documents produced by SAWS 
showing the increase in operation expenses from audits, balance sheets, etc. Mr. Stender 
then went over the options he created to change the water rates and the tap fees.  
 

1. Change Base User Rate – Current rate is $59.00 / two months. 

2. Change Base User Rate + use rate and add surcharge for high volume use 

3. Change - increase cost for new taps to recognize increased costs. 

In terms of the surcharge for high volume use, Mr. Stender suggested that there be a limit 
to the number of gallons used at the normal usage rate. For example, after 30,000 gallons, 
the charges per gallon go up to $1.40/1,000 gallons. Dr. Maier asked if they could lower 
that limit to 20,000 gallons and in so doing also encourage water conservation. Dr. Maier 
asked Mr. Stender if he thought that was an appropriate limit. Jay replied that he thought 
a lower limit was appropriate. It would also generate more revenue and encourage the 



4/12/2007 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

5 

water conservation, but 30,000 was chosen by giving a 50% cushion to the average user. 
Dr. Maier said that if only commercial SAWS customers were using 30,000 gallons per 
billing cycle then it might not make a difference, but if the limit was set lower, then there 
might be more of an impact on water conservation. Especially to those who were original 
SAWS customers and use the water for domestic purposes and irrigation. 
 
Chairman Kinskey asked whether the SAWS rules were up to date and if SAWS has the 
ability to move forward with the rate making process under its current operations 
agreement. Jay told him that Mr Wendtland said that everything was fine with the current 
operation agreement. Chairman Kinskey then clarified that they set up the public hearing 
with the rate changes already set and no changes to the resolution can be made at that 
point. If they want to change the resolution then they have to start all over again and give 
another 45 days for public comment. Jay said that he was correct. The board agreed that it 
was important to gather all the data and get the resolution right the first time. Dr. Maier 
wanted to iterate that this rate change is for SAWS customers only, not city users.  
 
Mayor Kinskey asked if they could have informational/informal meetings and hearings 
prior to the resolution. Mr. Rolston said that would be a good idea. It would also help the 
SAWS customers get comfortable with the rate changes prior to the resolution. Mayor 
Kinskey said that when they were doing the SID’s the City learned a lot of great stuff 
from the residents, and he thinks it would be very helpful to have the rural customer’s 
input early on. Dr. Maier suggested that SAWS do more legwork before the first informal 
meeting. It would help them out if they could see a condensed one sheet with the data on 
SAWS expenses, debt, and depreciation and the options for rate changes. Then the public 
could comment from the data and make better suggestions to the board. 
 
Jay Stender told the board that he did not include information on a potential fee for Water 
Service Agreements. He said that could be another source of revenue to cover costs that 
needs to be explored. Jay said that the developers would be upset because it is another 
expense to them. Bob Rolston commented later that with the new water service 
agreement process developers aren’ t going to the timely expense of doing all the work 
and then being turned down.  
 
Councilman Webster asked Stender if they imposed usage restrictions on all new SAWS 
customers could they eventually restrict water use to domestic use only for all SAWS 
users, even the original ones. Dr. Maier said that was probably a legal question for Mr. 
Wendtland. Mr. Stender said it could probably be done, but it might not be wise to bring 
that up in conjunction with the rate changes.  
 
Chairman Kinskey said that as long as they were discussing rate change processes he 
wanted to see if the board was interested in creating separate resolutions for each change. 
For example, create a resolution to change the base user rate, a resolution to change just 
the user rates, etc. Mr. Stender asked if the board wanted to orchestrate a 
workshop/organizational meeting to discuss rate changes before they go to the public. 
The board agreed that by the end of the month (March) information for the board to 
discuss at a workshop, and then determine when they will have the first open meeting 
with the public. Dr. Maier said that the one sheet for the open meeting needs to be clear 
and concise. Chairman Kinskey said that he would like to see a table with options 1, 2, 



4/12/2007 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

6 

and 3 and a summary stating where the options put SAWS financially. On that note, Dr. 
Maier said that with a rate change SAWS can definitely cover the increasing operation 
expenses, but the depreciation burden is so significant that no reasonable rate change can 
pay off the entire burden. Chairman Kinskey said that the numbers need to be played 
with, but he suggested that maybe they create rate changes for the next couple of years.  
 
The board came to the conclusion that Jay will have the information together by March 
30, 2007 and the board will finalize by the next board meeting, April 11, 2007.  
 
 Board Authorization 
 
Discussion: None, this new business was discussed above. Dr. Maier did note that he 
would like to see the administrator deal with Mr. Wendtland instead of Mr. Wendtland 
trying to deal with each board member separately.  
 
 Upcoming Contingent Water Service Agreements 
 
Discussion: Jay once again mentioned that the process has been started to create a water 
service agreement for the new Woodland Park School. Since this school in not deemed as 
a replacement, SAWS will need a new contingent water service agreement. He also noted 
that Blue Grass Meadows is a new subdivision seeking a CWSA. Chairman Kinskey 
mentioned that he was very appreciative of Jay’s careful wording to these entities. There 
were no guarantees on water.  
 
VIII. OTHER DISCUSSION 
 

HKM Infrastructure Report Meeting 
 
Discussion: There is a meeting on March 27, 2007 from 6:00 – 7:30 pm. HKM will be 
giving a report on the infrastructure and Chairman Kinskey would like everybody and 
their brother to attend. They will report on the existing land use survey and the study on 
the sewer capacity. It will show what is the most cost effective direction for the city to 
grow. 
 

Big Goose Water Treatment Plant 
 
Discussion: Chairman Kinskey told the SAWS board that per prior discussion his staff 
has contacted the Wyoming Water Development Commission (WWDC) about moving 
the responsibility of the Big Goose Water Treatment Plant project from the City’s to the 
SAWS Administrator. Kinskey said that he has not yet heard back from them. Jay 
Stender asked if the City had contacted them? Chairman Kinskey said yes, historically 
the WWDC has looked to the City to oversee SAWS projects, and per the discussion they 
had previously; SAWS can handle managing its own projects now because it has an 
administrator. Kinskey said, again, that his staff contacted the WWDC to let them know 
that the City really wants SAWS to oversee the Big Goose Project instead of the City. 
Stephen Maier asked if he meant future projects. Kinskey said that right now the BGWTP 
is the only project in the works, and it is early enough in the process that SAWS can take 
over. Mike Cole, City of Sheridan Utilities Engineer,  clarified that the water 



4/12/2007 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

7 

development staff is in the process of drafting a project agreement for legislature 
appropriated money for three (3) projects. One project is for a new tank for the Big 
Goose Water Treatment Plant, another project a new tank for the northwest part of the 
City of Sheridan which will benefit SAWS as well. And the third project is a 
rehabilitation project for the City’s water plant in the South Hill area. The first project is 
a 67% grant which the legislature appointed funds for. The second project is also a 67% 
grant and the third one is a 33% grant. The legislature approved the funding for these 
projects totaling $ 7 million, and the total project cost is just over $ 9 million. The money 
is coming from different pools in the water development fund. Some money is coming 
out of new development and some is coming out of rehabilitation. They are in the process 
of crafting the project agreement with the City of Sheridan or SAWS and themselves. 
When the WWDC contacted him earlier in the week, the City made the request if there 
was any way to separate these projects, and they have yet to get back to him.  
 
Chairman Kinskey continued that the WWDC was still on auto pilot not knowing that 
they had discussions during the 20”  Line meetings about the City of Sheridan being the 
project managers for a SAWS project. Kinskey said that he thought they had talked at the 
tail end of the last 20”  waterline meeting and came to an understanding that they needed 
to not have the City running SAWS business all the time. Kinskey said that it looked like 
they were on the same track as the 20”  Project with the Big Goose Water Treatment 
project where the City is running the show and SAWS is on the sidelines watching, so the 
City told the WWDC, per his understanding of the group, that SAWS doesn’ t want to be 
on the sidelines in future projects. Kinskey continued saying that the Water Development 
Commission was on track to once again have the City of Sheridan run the Big Goose 
project. So the City told the WWDC that SAWS is grown up, SAWS has an administrator 
now and the City doesn’ t need to be managing all their projects for them and the 
construction. Kinskey’s conclusion for now is that the WWDC is going to see what their 
options are and get back to him.  
 
Mike Cole said that the WWDC might come back and say that they would be more 
comfortable with the City running the project, a similar situation occurred with the 20”  
Project. Three or four years ago SAWS and the City submitted a joint application to the 
WWDC for project funding and there were no SAWS employees at that time so the 
WWDC said they would be more comfortable having the city manage it, and then SAWS 
and the City would come up with an internal agreement to determine cost share. Cole said 
they may very well come back with the same recommendation. But at this point they 
have asked that the project be run by SAWS. 
 
Chairman Kinskey said that they are asking the WWDC to recognize SAWS as a separate 
legal entity with staff that can fully manage its own affairs. Kinskey said the money has 
been given to the City by the legislature; SAWS may still be able to be in the pull 
position and work out internally the flow of money, but SAWS would still manage the 
project. 
 
Jay Stender asked what the cost to SAWS will be. Mike Cole told him that off the top of 
his head the total project is $ 2.5 million. Mayor Kinskey clarified that the legislature 
grant is 67%, so SAWS would be responsible for the remaining 33%. Jay Stender said so 
SAWS will need pay roughly $ 830,000. Mike Cole said yes. He said that with the 20”  



4/12/2007 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

8 

Line grant, the legislature agreed to pay 50% and then SAWS and the City agreed to a 
cost share for the remaining 50% of 70/30 split. Mayor Kinskey clarified that the 
application that went into the WWDC for the Big Goose Plant didn’ t have a cost share in 
it; they just agreed to pay 67%. Mike Cole said they offered 67% and the City would pay 
the remaining 33% and the City could come up with that money however they wanted to.  
 
Commissioner Maier asked, if SAWS signed or authorized on the grant application. Mike 
Cole said that the City applied for the grant. Maier clarified that the City has also 
obligated SAWS to pay the remaining share. Chairman Kinskey interjected and said that 
SAWS doesn’ t have to do the Big Goose Plant expansion at all. He said that it was 
worked out among the engineers. Kinskey asked Cole if the City Engineers came up with 
this project on their own or if it was in conjunction with Bruce Yates. Cole said that this 
project was a recommendation from a Level II Study that was completed in 2002. At the 
time, Mike Cole had just returned to the City and the City Engineer’s heard the WWDC 
was offering 67% grants and they quickly cranked out a grant application the day of a 
meeting to get a resolution and go forward with the project. Mayor Kinskey said he 
remembered that day and was impressed at how calm Mr. Cole was.  
 
Dr. Maier asked for clarification and summarized that SAWS was not involved in the 
writing of the grant for the Big Goose Water Treatment Plant project. Mike Cole said that 
is correct. He said that the reason for SAWS being left out is that all of the Level II 
Studies were prepared for the City of Sheridan, so the City was the only entity that could 
apply for the grant. If SAWS had applied for a grant for this project, the WWDC would 
have come back and told SAWS that they needed to complete the Level I and Level II 
study. Dr. Maier said that he wasn’ t questioning the need, he was questioning the process. 
Maier said that it sounds like the City has acquired an obligation on behalf of SAWS. 
Mayor Kinskey said that SAWS isn’ t obligated, SAWS just needs to leave two thirds of 
two and a half million dollars on the table. Kinskey said that historically the City 
Engineers handled their piece of the project and Bruce Yates handled his piece and 
somehow the project got handled. In this case, the City did the studies and the Big Goose 
Water Treatment Plant project came to be and after the last 20”  meeting, Mayor Kinskey 
said that the City needs to get out of the notion that the City will handle SAWS projects, 
and now that SAWS has an administrator SAWS can do these things itself. Kinskey 
thought for sure that he had said at the end of a long discussion at the last 20”  meeting 
that now is the time for the City of Sheridan to get out of the position of managing SAWS 
projects. He said that has been part of the rub on the 20”  project. The SAWS 
administrator is on the sidelines as the owner of the water line not knowing what is going 
on. He said once again that he thought they agreed that they don’ t want to be in that 
position again.  
 
Dr. Maier said that he recalled the discussion, but he wasn’ t sure that they had reached an 
agreement that SAWS would take over its projects. Maier said that that is a pretty big 
step from where SAWS was to make that change, and he is a little concerned about the 
project and on the future administration. He said that there was no formal discussion or 
decision on SAWS going in this direction. Maier is a little concerned that the City is 
moving ahead assuming that SAWS can take over a construction project and financially 
make this thing work. That is a lot of money for SAWS to commit to to make this project 
work. Maier said that his point is that SAWS never formally was a part of the discussion 



4/12/2007 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

9 

that they would take the reins on the Big Goose Water Treatment Plant project, 
informally maybe. He thinks that this is a good direction for SAWS to go in the future, 
but he is a little discouraged that this wasn’ t discussed formally, and, in his opinion, no 
formal action was taken by the SAWS board in a significant change in operation and 
funding a project that he isn’ t sure he was aware of prior to tonight.  
 
Chairman Kinskey said that it’s a perpetuation of a prior system where the City does one 
par and the County does one part. He thinks that without a change SAWS will end up in 
exactly the same position on the Big Goose project as the currently are on the 20”  project. 
With the City of Sheridan advancing the money, managing the project and doing 
everything on the project by the direction of the WWDC and SAWS sitting on the 
sidelines asking the City to let them know what’s happening. He thought he heard loud 
and clear that they wanted to get off that posture, and if they are going to reverse that 
then it needs to happen quickly because the City is asking the WWDC to treat SAWS as 
an independent entity for the purposes of the Big Goose Water Treatment Plant Project.  
 
Dr. Maier said the real concern he had was that the communication wasn’ t clear to him 
on the 20”  line, but with the help of Mike Cole and HKM they have alleviated his 
concern. He said this project is rather quick, so he is not sure what the right direction is. 
He would hate to lose the grant, but he would like to have some more discussion on it. If 
SAWS takes over this project it brings up a lot more issues with staffing, costs, etc. and 
he wants to talk about it more. He said that he was just a little surprised and trying to 
react to the news.  
 
Chairman Kinskey said that one option he can think of is Mike orienting Jay to the file 
and letting him know where things stand. He thinks that can alleviate a lot of concern and 
that Jay is fully capable of carrying the project forward. Kinskey said that the hardest part 
is getting the money, and that has already been done for SAWS by the City of Sheridan. 
The project is still conceptual at this point. Mike Cole said that he anticipates a project 
agreement – more than likely a joint effort between the City and SAWS – will be 
executed with WWDC in the next 2-3 months, an engineer would be hired around July 
1st, final design being completed in the next year and construction beginning next 
summer (2008). Cole said that usually the money from the grant needs to be drawn on in 
3-4 years. So there is some time, the WWDC is very accommodating. Kinskey asked if 
the cost for the engineering is included in the grant. Mike said that the grant includes that 
cost and SAWS won’ t have to come up with more money to hire engineers or other 
professional services. 
 
Dr. Maier clarified that they were just talking about the Big Goose project not he 20”  
project. Mayor Kinskey said yes, the City and SAWS will continue to work together on 
the 20”  project. Kinskey asked what the Big Goose project entailed. The improvements 
will optimize the capacity of the Big Goose Treatment plant and the 20”  water line. 
Studies show that pressure will be an issue and the Big Goose project will help with that. 
Dr. Maier said that he doesn’ t doubt the need for the improvements. Mr. Cole said that 
they started thinking about this project back in August, but the grant was minimal, then 
the WWDC offered a 67% grant and the City jumped at the chance and wrote the grant 
proposal immediately. The City decided to work out the details with SAWS later, and 
now they are trying to work them out.  



4/12/2007 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

10 

 
 
 
 
 
IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

N/A 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

A. The meeting was adjourned at 6:43 pm by Chairman Kinskey. 
 
 
 
APPROVED BY:  ________________________ 
 
ATTESTED BY:  ________________________ 


